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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{d) investment property

(i)

{ii}

Investment property carried at cost

Invesiment properties are properties which are owned or held under a
leasehgld interastto eam rental income or for capifal apprecialion or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properly are siated at cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses, consistent with the accounting
policy for equipment as stated in accounting policy Note 2(h).

Costincludes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
investment properties.

An investmenl property is derecognised on its disposal, or when it is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefils are
expecied from s disposal. The difference befween the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the item is derecognised.

Freehotd land is not depreciated.
Determination of fair value

The Directors estimate the fair values of the Company's investment
properfies without the involvement of independent valuers,

The fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liabilty in an ordsrly transaction betwean market participants at
the maasurement date (see note 2(o)).

(e) Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

(i}

Developed properties held for sale

Developed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories is calculated using the specific
identification method and consists of costs associated with the acquisition of
land, direct costs and appropriate proportions of common cosis afiributable
to developing the properties to completion. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated cosls necessary to make the sale.
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2. Significant accounting policies {(continued)

{e) Inventories (continued)

{it)

(it}

Property development costs

Property development costs comprise costs asseciated with the acqguisition
of land and all costs that are directly atiributable to development activities or
that can be allocated on a reasonsble basis to such activitiss.

Cost incurred on development projects where the developmant aclivities are
expected to be completed within the Company normal operating cycle of 2
to 3 years are classified as current assets. Common costs allocated to fulure
development projects within the same geographical location as existing
development projects are classified as non-current assels,

Property development costs is recognised as an asset and is staled at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Land held for property development

Land held for property development consists of land or such porfians thereof
on which no development activities have been carried out or where
devélopment activities are not expected to be completed within the normal
operating cycle, Such land is classified as non-current assets and is stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Land held for properly development is reclassified as property development
costs at the point when development activities have commenced and where
it can be demonsirated that the development activities can be compleied
within the normatl operating cycle.

Cost associated with the acquisition of land includes the purchase price of
the land, professional fees, stamp duties, commissions. conversion fees and
other relevant levies,

{fi Contract costs

{i

(i)

Incremental cost of obtaining a contract

The Company recognises incremental costs of obiaining contracts when the
Company #xpects {0 recover these costs.

Cost to fulfil a contract

The Company récognises a contract cost that relate directly to a contract or
to an anticipated contract as an asset when the cost generates or enhances
resources of the Company, will be used in satisfying performance obligations
in the future and it is expected to be recovered.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
{f) Contract costs (continued)

{if) Costto fulfii a contract {continued)

These contract cosfs are initially measured at cosf and amortised on a systernatic
basis that is consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition to which the asset
relaies. An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss when the carrying
amount of the contract cost exceeds the expecied revenue less expecled cost that
will be incurred. Whare the impairment condition no longer exists or has improved,
the impairment loss is reversed o the extent that the carrying amount of the
confract cost does not excesd the amount that would have been recognised had
there been no impairment loss recognised previously.

{g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaienis consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with
banks which have an insignificant risk of changes in falr value with original
maturities of three months or less, and are used by the Company in the
management of their short termy commiiments,

{h} Impairment
{i} Financial assets

The Company recognises i0ss allowances for expected credit losses on
{inancial assets measured at amortised cost and contract assetls. Expected
credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to hifetime
expected credit losses, axcept for cash and bank balance and ciher
receivables for which credit risk has nol increased significantly since initial
recognition, which are measured 12 manths expected credit loss. Loss
allowancas for contract assels are always measured at an amount equal 1o
Hifetime expected credit loss.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significartly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit
loss, the Company congider reasonable and supportable information that is
relevari and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company's historical sxperience and informed credt assessment and
including forward-looking information, where available.

Lifetime eXxpected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result
from all possible defauilt events over the expected life of the assst, while 12-
month expected credit iosses are the portion of expected credit losses that
result from defaull events that are possibie within the 12 months after the
reporting date. The maximum period considered when estimating expected
credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company
are exposed to credit risk.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

th)

Impairment (continued)

{i)

(i)

Financial assets {continued)

Animpairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost
is recognised in profit or foss and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial asssts
carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial assel is credit
impaired when one or more evenis that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially
or full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery, This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the deblor does not
have assetls or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject 1o the write-off. However, financial assets that

-are written off could still be subject to enforcement aclivities in order fo

comply with the Company's procedures for recovery amounis due.
Other assets

The carrying amounts of other assels (except for inventories) are reviewed
at the end of each reporling period to determine whether there is any
indication of Empament If any such indication exists, then the assefs
recoverable amount is estimated.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the
smallest group of assels that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash-
generafing units,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating uni is lhe greater
of its value in use and iis fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of manay and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating
unit.

An impairment losg is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its
related cash-generaling unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses

recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to the cash-
generating unil (groups of cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
{h) Impairment {continued)
(i} Other assets {continued)

Iimpairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of
each reporting period for any indications that the loss has decrsased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed i there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recogniged. An impairment loss Is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that wouid have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised, Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the financial vear in which the reversals are
racognised. '

() Equity instruments

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are
not remeasured subsequently.

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

(il Employee benefits
{i} Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salares, annual
bonuses, paid annual leave and sick leave are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed off as the related service is provided.

A tability is recognised for the amount expected ta be paid under short-term
cash bonus if the Company has & present legal or constructive obligation fo
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably,

{ii} State plans
The Company's contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to profit
or loss in the financial year to which they relate. Prepaid contributions are

recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
fulure payments is available.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
{k) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Caompany has a present
legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated refiably, and it is probable
that an oufflow of economic bensfits will be required to selile the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected fulure cash fiows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of mongy and
the risks speacific to the liabilily. The unwinding of the discouni is recognised as
finance cost,

{} Revenue and other income
(i} Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured hased on the consideration specified in a contract
with 2 customer in exchange for transferring goods or sefvices to a
customer, exctuding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The
Company recognises revenug when {(or as) it transfers control over a product
or service (0 customer. An assel is fransfered when {or as) the customer
gbiains contro! of the assst.

The Company transfers control of a good or service at a poin{ in {ims unless
cne of the following overtime criteria is met:

{a) the customer simullaneously receives and consumes the bhenelits
provided as the Company performs;

{b) the Company's performance creales or anhances an asset lhat the
custamer controfs as the asset is created or enhanced; or

{c} the Company's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use and ihe Company has en enforceable right to payment
tor performance completed to date.

{ii) Interestincome

Iiferest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
methad in profit of loss.

{m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are not dirsctly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or foss using the effective
interest methad.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets. which are assets thal necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their infanded use or sale, are capifalised as part of the cost
of those assets.

IV-26



APPENDIX IV(A) — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BHP DEVELOPMENT FOR THE FYE
31 DECEMBER 2019 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)

26

| Registration No. 189901017855 (492755-M) |

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Borrowing costs {continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure {or the asset is being incurred, borrowing ¢osts are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepars the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activilies necessary 1o prepare the
gualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or compielad.

Invasiment income earned on the femporary invesiment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
cosis eligible for capitalisation.

(n) income tax

Income {ax expense somprises current and deferred tax. Current {ax and deferred
iax are recognised in profit or loss.

Current 1ax is the expecied lax payable or receivable on the taxable income or
loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting pericd. and any adjustment fo tax payable in respect of previous
fimancial years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary
ditferences between the carrying amounis of assets and liabililies in the statement
of {inancial posilion and their iax bases. Deferrad tax is not recognised for
temporary differences that affecis neither accounting nor {axable profit or loss.

Defarred lax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacied or substantively enacted by the end of the reporhing period.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured basaed on the expected
mannear of realisation or seftlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
tabiiifies, using tax rates enacted or subsiantively enacted at the reporling date.
Deferred tax assets and lighifities are not discounted.

Deferred tax asseis and liabililies are offsel if there is a legally enforceable right
lo offsel current tax habilifies and assels, and they relate o income taxes levied
by the same tax authority on the same taxable eniity, or on different lax entities,
but they intend to settle current tax assels and liabilities on a netl basis or their tax
agsets and kabilities will be realised simuitanecusly.

A deferred tax asset is recognised o the extent that it is probable that future
laxable profits will be available against which the lermperary difference can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets ars reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
are reduced to the exient lhat it i ro longer probable that ihe related tax benefit
will be realised.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{o0) Fair value measurement

Fair value of an asset or a liability except for lease {fransactions, is determined as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly ransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal marke! ar in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market.

For non-financial asset, tha fair value measurement 1akes into accourd a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possibie. Fair value are categuorised into different
lavels in a fair value hisrarchy based on the input used in the valuation technique
as follows:

Level 1- quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Company can access at the measurement date.

Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for {ha asset or liability, either directly cr indirectly,

Level! 3:  unobservable inpuis for the asset or liability,

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as
of the date of the event or change in circumsiances that caused the trangfers.
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3. Pilant and equipment
Computer Furniture
Office and and Motor
equipment software fittings  vehicle Totat
RM RM RM RM RM

Cost

At 1 January 2018 3,494 6,445 - - 8,939

Addition 5,150 16,152 50060 423,488 494860

At 31 December 2018/

1 January 2019 8,654 22.597 50,080 423488 504,798
Addition - 10690 . - 10890
Al 31 December 2019 8,854 33,287 50,080 423,488 515489
Depreciation
At 1 January 2018 3.484 632 . - 4,126
Dapreciation for the

year 502 3,333 47172 357291 43,398
At 31 December 2018/

1 January 2019 4,008 3.965 4,172 358,291 47 524
Deanreciaticn for the

year 1032 5.744 5,006 84,697  88.479
At 31 December 2019 L...5a28 9,708 9,178  119.988  144.003
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2018 - 5813 - - 5,813
At 31 December 2018/

1 January 2019 4,558 18,632 45,885 388197 457 275
At 31 December 2018 3526 23578 40,882 303500 371,488
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4. Right-of-use assets
tand lease  Buildings Total
RM RM
At 1 January 2019 789,090 587,577 1,376,667
Addition - 3331545 3,331,545
Depreciation  {430,413)  (208,131)  (638,544)
At 31 December 2019 358,677 3,710,991 4,069,668

The Company leases fand and buildings that run between 1 year and 6 years, with an
option to renew the lease after the date.

4.1 Extension options

Some leases contain extension options exercigable by the Company up to two yesrs
before the end of the non-cancefabie contract pericd. Where applicable, the
Company seeks to include extension options in new leases to provide gperational
flexibility. The extension opticns held are exercisabie only by the Company and not
by the iessors. The Company assesses at lease commencement whether it s
reasonably cerigin io exercise the extension options. The Company reassesses
whether it is reasonably certain o exarcise the options if there is a significant eveni
or significant change in circumstances within its control.

4.2 Significant judgement and assumptions in relation io leases

The Campany assesses at lgase commeancement by applying signiticant judgement
whether i is reasonably certain 10 exercise the extension ogtions. The Company
consider ail facls and circumstances including their pasi praciice and any cost that
wilt be incurred to change the asset if an oplion to extend is not taken, 1 help them
determine the lease lerm.

The Company aiso applied judgement and assumptions in determining the
incremential borrowing rate of the respective leases. The Company first delermine
the closest available borrowing rates before using significant judgement o
determina the adjusiments required to reflect the term, securily, value or aconomic
environment of the respective leases.
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5. Investment property

2019 2018
RM RM
investment property at cost 8,246,000 -

Included in invesiment property is a freehold land with indefinile useful life.
5.1 Fair value information

Fair vatue of investment property is categorised as follows:

2019 2018
Level 3 Lavel 3
AM RM
Froehold land 8,216,000 "

Policy on transfer between levels

The fair value on of an assst 1o be ansferred between levels is determined as of
Ihe date the svent or change in circurnsiances thal caused that transfer.

Level 3 Fair value

Level 3 fair value is estimated using unobservable inputs for the investment
properties.

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in the determination of fair
valugs within Level 3, as welt @s the significant unobservable inputs used in the
valuation modeis.

inter-
refationship
Significant between
Valuation technigue unobservable inputs significant
unobservable
inputs and fair
value
raeasurement
The Company esiimates the fair  Price per square fool, The estimated
value of its investment property {2019: RM1,360, fair value would
based on the comparison of the 2018: Nil) increase/
Company's investment property (decrease) it
wilh similar properties that were markei prices of
listed for zale within the same properly werg
locafity or other comparable higher/{lower).

iocalities.
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5. Investment property (continued)
5.1 Fair value information (continued)
Policy on transfer between levels (coniinued)
Level 3 fair value {continued)
Assessmen of the fair values of the Company’s investment property is undertaken
annually. The changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed by the management
basad on the assessment undertaken.
Highest and best use
The Company's investment properly represents a freghold land with indefinite

usefu! life, The highest and best use of this [and shpuld be for future devefopment
as 1 is located in the vicinity of tily centre,

6. Inventories

Mote 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
RM RM
At 1 January
Leasehoid land 252 285673 231,767,648
Leasehold lands
-cost incurred during the year 6.1 2687328682 20518,025
Development cosls
-gost incurred during the year 5,409,788 -
-tlassified fram contract costs 8 14540008 -
Legager 20,518,025
At 31 December
Leasehold land 279018525 252 285,673
Development cosl 19,949,797 -

6.2 298 988,322 252,285 673

§.1  Included in the addition of inventories is borrowing costs of RM15,127,549 (2018:
RM13.855,025) capitatised at 5.48% (2018: 5.44%) per annum.

6.2 inventories of the Company with carrying amount of RM222 300,000 (2018:

RM222,300,000) is charged as securifies for bank borrowings granted to the
Company {(see Noie 11).
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7. Other receivables
2019 .2018
RM RM
Non-trade
Other receivables 1,198,270 24,424
Sundry deposits L. 462,553 992470
1,660,823 1,018,884
Contact costs
2619 2018
RM RM™
Casts to fulfili a contract
At beginning of the year 14,540,008 12,767,280
Addg: Cost incurred during the year - 8,435,769
Less: Reclassified o inventories (14,540.009)  {6,663,000)
At the end of lhe year - 14,540,009
Cash and cash equivalents
2919 2018
RM RM
Cash and bank balances 5 876,088 245,851
Deposits with licensed banks 1,107 1,076
5.877,196 246,927
Share capital
Number Number
Amount of shares Amount  of shares
20148 2019 2018 2018
RM RM
Issued and fully paid shares with
no par value classified as
equity instrument
Qrdinary shares
At 1 January 2,500,000 2,500,000 2500000 2500000
lssuance of shares 16,076,875 1,812,500 - -
Ai 31 December 18,678,875 4,312,500 2,500,000 2,500,000

Ordinary shares

The holders of ardinary shares are enitled to receive dividends as declared from time
1o time and are entitied to one vole per share al mestings of the Company. Ali crdinary
shares rank equally with regard to the company's residual assats.,
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11. Loans and borrowings
Note 2019 2018
RM RM
Non-cutrent
Secured term loan 11.2 172,192,609 155,610,000
Hire purchase fiability 161,558 215,643

172,354,187 155,825,643

....................................

Current

Becured term foan 11.2 4,448,000 -

Hire purchase liability 54,085 51,766
4,502,088 51766
176,856,252 155,877,409

11.1 Security

The farm toan is secured by (he following:

(i} faciliies agreement;

{iti legal charge over inventorias as disvlosed in Note 6,

(i} debenture incorporating a fixed and floating charge over ail present and
future assets of the Campany's development project.

11.2 Finance lease liability

Reconciliation of movement of loans and borrowings o cash flows arising from
financing activities:

Hire
purchase Term
tiability loan
RM RM
2019
Balance at begianing of the year 267,409 155,610.000
Drawdown - 21,030,609
Repayment {51.766) ~
Balance at end of the year 2168643 176,640,608
2018
Balance at beginning of the year - 1545 610,000
Drawdown 280,000 -
Repayment (12891} -
Batance a2t end of the year 267,408  155610.000

IV-34



APPENDIX IV(A) — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BHP DEVELOPMENT FOR THE FYE
31 DECEMBER 2019 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)

34
[Registration No. 199901017855 (492755-M)
12. Trade and other payables
Note 20199 2018
RM RM
Trade
Trade payables 12.1 284299 728,657
Non-trade
Amount due o corporate shareholders 12.2 129,351,570 .
Amount due o ultimate holding company 12.3 - 86,156,961
Amount due io related parties 12.4 49,444 7.354,529
Other payabies 128 385,197 22,750,177
Accruais 560,808 0,500

130638016 116,272,067
130,922,315 117,000,624

12.1 Included in trade payables during the financial yearis retention sum of RM102 500
{2018: RM205.000).

12.2 Tha amount due to corparate sharghokiers is unsecured and repayable on
demand except for RM 110,213,258 {2018: Nil} bears inferest at 5.5% {2018 Nil}
per annum,

12.3 In the previous year, the amournd due (o uitimate holding company was unsecured
and repayabla on demand except for RM77,327,200 bears interest at 5.5% per
annum.

12.4 The amount due to related parties is unsecured and repayable on demand. In
financiat year 2018, inciuded in the balance is RM8, 993,000 beats inlerest at 5.5%
per annuim.

12.5 Inthe previous year, thera were amounts of RM20,713,300 bears interestat 5.5%
per annum included in the other payables.

128 Reconciliation of movement of amount due to corporate shareholder, amount due
to ultimate holding company and amount due to related parties respectively io
cash flows ansing from financing activities are as follows:

Amount due
Amountdue  toultimate  Amount due
to corporate holding to related
shareholder company parties
RM RM
Baiance at 1 January 2019 - 86,156,861 7,354,529
Advances 34,339,551 - 2,441,572
Repaymsnt (18,712,972) - (8.755,657)
Reclassification from other
payables 25,568,100 - .
Reciassification from ditimaie
halding company o carporale
shareholders _B6.156.861 (86,156,861} Lt
Balance at 31 December 2019 128,351,570 - ..a0,444

IV-35



APPENDIX IV(A) — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BHP DEVELOPMENT FOR THE FYE
31 DECEMBER 2019 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)

35

[Registration No. 199901017855 (492755-M) |

12. Trade and other payables {continued)

12.8 Reconciliation of movement of ameunt due to corporate shareholder, amount dus
to ultimate holding company and amouni due to related pariies respectively to
cash flaws arising from financing activities are as foliows {confinued):

Amount due
Amount due toultimate Amount due
to corporate holding to related
shareholder company parties
RM RM RM
Balance at 1 January 2018 69,117,590 17,070,188 6,851,778
Advances 18,349,271 5077770 7,354,529
Repayment {1.310.000} {1,080,000) {6,851,778)
Reclassification from corporate
shareholder - 38,156,861 -
Reclasgsification to yltimate
holding company/ other
payables (86,156,861} (21,967 968) -
Balance at 31 December 2018 - 86,156,861 7.354.529
13. Revenue
2019 2018
RM RM
Revenye from contracls with customers 82,723 -
13.4 Disaggregation of revenue
2019 2018
R#M RM
Markets
Malzysia 82723 -
Timing and recognition
Cvertime _B2.723 ot

13.2 Nalure of goods and services

The following information reflects the typical transaction of the Company:

Nature of | Timing of recog}aition or method

IV-36
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13. Revenue {continued)
13.2 Nature of goods and services (continued)

There were no variable element in consideration, obligation for returns, refunds
or warraniy given to customers in the revenue transactions for the year.

13.3 Significant judgements and assumptions arising from revenue recognition
There are no significant judgements and assumplions appbed thal significantly

affect the determination of the amouni and timing of revenue recognition from
coniracts with customers.

14. Finance costs

2019 2018
RM RM
Interest expense on lsase liabilities 89 505 -
Interes! expense of financial fabilities that are not at fair value
through profit or loss 15,501,804 13,858,052

15,501 409 13,858,052

Recognised in profit or loss 363 860 3,027

Interest expense of financial Kabifities that are not at fair value
through profit or loss capitalised info gqualifying assets:-

- laventorigs 18,127,549 13,855.025
15,591,406 13,858,052

15. Loss before tax

2019 2018

Note RM RM
Loss before tax is arrived at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration 15,000 5,000
Material expensesi{income)
Depreciation of plant and equipment 88,479 43,398
Depreciation right-of-use asseis 638,544 -
interest income [31) (30)
Expenses arising from leases
Expenses relating {o shori-lerm leases a 150,000 -
Renta! of buildings - 758,200

Note a

The Company leases a building with contract terms of § months. The lease is shart-
term. The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assels and lease liabiliies
for these leases.
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16. Tax expense
2019 2018
RM RM
Current tax expense
- Under provigion « 8,974
Reconciliation of tax expense
Loss before tax {4.149,.355) {407.325)
Income tax calculated using Malaysian tax rate
of 24% (2018: 24%} {995,845) {97.758)
Non-deductible expenses 24,085 37,038
Effect of deferred tax assels not recognised a71,760 60,720
Under provision of current tax in prior year - 8,974
- 8!9?4

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in raspect of the following itemns (stated

at gross):
2019 2018
R R
Tax iosses carry forward 5,686,000 3,755,000
Unabsorbed capilal aifowances 113,000 83.000
Taxabie temporary differences 80,000 {38.000;

5,849,000 _1.800,000

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is
nol probahie that future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can
uithise the benefits therafrom.

Under the Finance Bilt 2018, the fax insses ¢an be caried {orward up lo seven {7)
consecutive years of assessmants effective from 2019. The tax losses can be carned
forward up to 2026,

17. Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statemenls, parties are considered 10 be related to
the Company if the Company has the abilily, directly or indirectly. to conirol or jointly
confral the parly or exercise significant influence over ihe party in making financial ang
operating decisions. or vice versa, or where the Company and the party are subject to
comman control. Related parties may be individuals or other antilies.
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17. Related parties {continued)
ldentity of related parties (continued)

Related parties also includes key management personnel are defined as those persons
having autharity and responsibility for planning, directing and controiling the activities of
the Company either directly or indirectly. The key management perscnngi includes all
the Directors of the Company.

The Company has related party relationship with #ts ultimale holding company,
corporate shareholders, related company, related parties and key management
personnet.

Significant related party transactions (continued}
Related parly transactions have been entered inlo in the nomal course of business

unger negotiated terms. The significant related party transactions of the Company are
shown below. The balances relaled fo the ransactions are shown in Note 12,

2016 2018
RM RM
Holding company
Advances received - 18,349,271
Corporate shareholder
Advances received 34,339,581 -
Repayment of advances (16,712,972} -
Related parties
Advances received 2,441,572 7,354 520
Repayment of advances 9,755.657 8,851,776
ey management personnel
Director's remuneratlion
- satarias and other emoiuments 337.047 181,725
- defined contribution plans 30,171 30,000

18. Capital management

The Company’s objeclives when managing capital is 1o mainiain a strong capital base
and sateguard the Company’s ability to continug as a going concern, so as o mainiain
nvestor, crediter and market confiderice and to sustain future development of the
business.

The Company’s capifal is rapresenied by ils total equity in the siatement of financial
position. The Directors monitor the adeguacy of capital on an ongoing basis and rely on
the conlinuous financial support from its corparate shareholders. The corporate
shareholders has agreed to provide continucus financial support to the Company o
enable it to fulfil its obligations as and when they fail due.

There is no external capital requirement imposed on the Company,
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19, Financial instruments

19.1

Categories of financial instruments

39

The tahls below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as

amortised cost ("AC").

Carrying
amount AC
RM RM
201%
Financiat assets
Qther receivables 1,660,823 1,660,823
Cash and cash equivalents 5877196 5.877,186
7,538,019 7.538.019
Financial liability
Loans and borrowings 176 856,252 178,858,252
Trade and other payabies 130,922,315 130,922,315
307,773,567 307.778,567
2018
Financial assets
Other receivables 1,016,854 1,016,884
Cash ard cash equivalents 246,027 246,927
1,263,821 1,263,821
Financial liahility
Loans and botrowings {155,877,400}) {155,877,409)
Trade and other payables {117,000,624)  (117.00D,624)
{272.878.033) {272,878.033)
19.2 Net losses and gains arising from financial instruments
2019 2018
RM RM
Naf (losses)/gains arising on:
Financial asseis at amortised cost 31 30
Financial liabilties at amortised cost (463,860] {3,027}
{463,828} (2,997}

IV-40



APPENDIX IV(A) — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BHP DEVELOPMENT FOR THE FYE
31 DECEMBER 2019 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)

40

| Registration No. 199901017855 (482755-M) |

19. Financial instruments (continued)

19.3 Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial

instruments:
+ Credil risk
s Liquidity risk

+ Market risk
19.4 Credit risk

Credit nsk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its centractual obligations.
The company's exposure 1o credit risk arises principally from its recejvables and
financial guarantee given to barnks in respect of banking facilities granted to third
pariies. There are no significant changes as compared 1o prios pericds.

Other receivable

Expected credit loss of other receivable is delermined individually after
considering the financial strength of the other receivables.

As at the end of the reporling period, the maximum exposure to gredit risk is
rgprasented by they carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.

Based on the management's assessment, the probabilily of the default of the
receivables is Jow and hence, no loss allowance has been made.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not recognised any
allowance for impairment losses.

Cash and bank balances

The cash and bank batances are heid with banks and financial institutions, As
at the end of the reporling period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is
represanted by their carrying amounis in the staterment of financial position.

These banks and financial insiitutions have low credit risks. In addition, some of
ihe bank balances are insured by guverrmen! agencies. Consequently, the
Company are of ihe view ihat ihe loss allowance is not material and hence, it is
nof provided for,
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19. Financial instruments {continued)
19.4 Credit risk {continued)
Financial guaranteses
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

The Campany provides financial guarantees to barks in respect of banking
tacilities granied to third parties.

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

The maximum exposure o credit risk amounts in current financial year Is
RM10.000.000 {2018: RM10,000,000) representing the oulstanding banking
facilities of the Company as at end of the reporting pericd.

As at the end of the reporling period, there was no indication that the third
parties would defaul on repayment.

The financial guarantees have not been recognised since the fair value on initial
recognition was not material.

19.5 Liquidity risk

Liguigily risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial
chligations as they fall due. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises
principally {rom its various payables including lease fiabilities.

The Company maintaing a levei of cash and bank balances desmed adequats
by the managament 10 ensure, as far as possible, 1hat it will have sufficiert
liquidity 1o meet its liabilities when they fal] due. The corporate sharehoicers
have also agreed lo provide continuous financial support to the Company fo
arable i to fullill ils obligations as and when they fall due.

it is not expected {hat the cash flows included in the malurity analysis could
occur sigrificantly earlier, or at significantly different amounis.
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19. Financial instruments (continued)
18.5 Liguidity risk {continued)
Maturity analysis

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period based on
undiscounted contraclual paymenis:

Carrying  Contractual Contractual Under 1 1-2 2-5 More than
amount interest rate  cash flows year years years 5 years
RM Y RM RW RM Rw™ RM
2019
Term loan 176,640,608 5.35% - 5.60% 225 541,517 14,168,248 18,423,370 78,898,057 114,251,842
Hire purchase liability 215,643 4.39% 234,280 82,472 62,472 109,306 -
Trade and other payables 130,922,315 5 50% 130,022,315 130,922,315 - - -
Lease liabilities 4,158 617 5.45% 4,765,000 1,168,000 792,000 2805000 0 0 -
311,938,084 361,463,082 146,321,036 18,277,842 81612363 114,251,842
2018
Term loan 155,610,000 5.35% - 5.60% 189,388,313 8,714,160 29,145,028 108,388,588 43,142,539
ire purchase liability 267,408 4.39% 296,722 62,472 62472 171,778 -
Trade and other payables 117,000,624 5.50% 117,000,624 117,000,624 - - .
272,878,033 306,685,659 125,777,266 29,207,500 108,558,364 43,142 539
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19. Financial instruments (continued)

18,6 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange
rates and interest rales will afect the Company's financial position or cash flows.
The Company is not materially affected by foreign exchange rates risk and other
price risks.

19.6.1 Interest rate risk

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in their
fair value due to changes in inferest rales whereas the Company's floaling rate
borrowings are exposed fo a risk of change in cash flows due to changs in
interest rates. The Company has entered into appropriate mix of fixed and
floating rate borrowings for operations to finance working capital and fuiure
property development project.

The interest rate profile of the Company’s significant interast-bearing financial
instruments, based on carrying amounis as at the end of the reporting period
were secured ferm loan, amount due to corporate shargholders and relajed
parties as discloged in Note 11 and Note 12 respectively, Shorl {erm receivables
and payables are nol significantly exposed 1o irterast rale risk.

Risk management objectives, poficies and processes for managing the risk

interest rale exposure arises mainly from the Company’s loans and borrowings
and lease lisbilities. The Company clasely monitors the interest rate trends and
decisions in respect of floating rate debt structure, and tenor of borrowings are
made basad on the expected interest rate rends and afler consuitations with
the bankears.

Exposure to interesi rale risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's significant inferest-bearing financiat
instrumenis, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reperting period

was:
2019 2018
RM RM
Fixed rate instruments
Deposits with licensed bank 1,107 1,078
Amount due to a corporale shareholder (110.2713.258) .
Ameount due lo holding company - (77,327.200)
Amount due {o relaled pariies - (6,993,000)
Amount due 1o other payables - {20,713.300)
Hire purchase Hability {215,643) (267,409}
Lease liabilites {4,159,817} -

(114587 311}  {105,299,833)

Fipating rate instruments
Secured term loan (176,640,608} (155.610,000)
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19. Financial instruments {continued)

19.6

1961

19.6.2

19.7

Market risk {continued)

Interest rate risk {continued)

inferest rate risk sensifivily analysis

Fair value sensiivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial liabililies af fair value
through profit or loss, Therefore, a change in interes! rates at the end of the
reporting period would not affect profit or luss.

Cash fiow sensitivity anafysis for variable rate instrumenls

As changes in 0 basis point {"bp") in inferest rates at the end of the reporling
period would increased/(decreased) post-fax profit or joss by the amounls

shown below. This anzlysis assumes all other variables, in particular foreign
surrency rates, remain constant.

100bp 100bp
increase decrease
RM RM
2018
Floating rate instrument (1.342.469) 1,342,468
2018
Floating rate instrument (1,184668) 1184 6658

Currency risk

The Company has no receivables and payables denominaled in foreign
currency. Therefare, the currency risk is not significant,

Fair value information
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalenis, shori-izrm receivables and

payables reasonably approximate fair values due (o the relatively short term
nalurg of thess financial instruments.
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18. Financial instruments {(continued)
19.7 Fair value information {continued)

The table below analyses other financial instruments at fair value:

Fair value of

financial
instrument not
carried at falr
vatue Total Carrying
Level 3 fair value amount

2019 RM RM RM
Financial liabilities
Term joans - secured 176,640.609 176,640,608 176,640,600
Hire purchase Hability 215,643 215,643 215,643

176,856,262 176,866,252 176.856,252
2018
Financial liabifities
Tarm loans — secured 185,610,000 185,610,600 155,610,000
Hire purchase ligbility . g6rd4e8 267,408 267,409

155,877 409 155,877,409 155 877 409

Level 3 fair vaiue

L.evel 3 tair value is estimated using uncbservable inputs for the financial assets
and liabilities.

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in the delermination of
fair values within Leve! 3, as well as the key unchservable inputs used in the
valuation modets.

Fingncial instruments not camied af falr value
Description of valuation technique and input used

Fair vaiue of lerm loans is estimated to approximate its
carrying amount as this is variable rate borrowings.

Type
Term foans

Hire purchass
Hiabitity

Fair value of hire purchase fiability is estimated based on
discounted cash flows using prevading markel rate of
simifar hire purchase arrangsmen|,

IV-46



APPENDIX IV(A) — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BHP DEVELOPMENT FOR THE FYE
31 DECEMBER 2019 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)

46

| Registration No. 199901017855 (492755-M) |

20. Significant changes in accounting policies
During the year, the Company adopted MFRS 16,
Definition of a lease

On {ransition ¢ MFRS 16, the Company elected to apply the practical expedient to
grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. It applied MFRS 16 only
io contracis ihat were previously identified as leases, Contracts that were not identified
as leases under MFRS 117 and IC Interprefation 4, Delermining whelher an
Arrangement conlains a Lease were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease
under MFRS 18 has been applled only to contracts entered into or changed on or after
1 January 2019,

As alessee

Where the Company is & lessee, the Company applied the requirements of MFRS 16
using the modified retrospective approach.

At 1 January 2019, for lsases thal were classified as operating lease under MFRS 117,
lease Habilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2018, The
weighted-average rate applied is 5.45%. Righl-of-use assels are measured at an
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lgase payments.

The Company used the following practical expedients when applying MFRS 15 {o
leases previpusly classified as nperating lease under MFRS 1172

apphed a single discount rate 1o a portiolio of leases with similar characteristic:

» applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilties for leases
wiltr less than 12 monihs of lease term as at 1 January 2019,

»  excluded intial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assat at the dale of initial
application; and

» used hindsight when determining the iease term if the coniract cortains oplions to
axtend or lerminale thea leass.

20.1 impacts on financial statements

Since the Company apphed the reguiraments of MFRS 18 using the modified
retrospeclive approach at initial application at 1 January 2018, there are no
adjustments made to the prior period presented.
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20. Significant changes in accounting policies (continued)
20.1 Impacts on financial statements {continued)
The foliowing table explains the difference between operaling ilease

commitments disclosed applying MFRS 117 at 31 December 2018, and Jease
liabilities recogrised i the staternent of financiat position at 1 January 2019,

RM
QOperating lease commitmenis at 31 Decermber 2018 1,648,200
Discounied using the incremental borrowing rate at
1 January 2019 1,158,773
Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised 368,218
Recognition exemplion for short-lerm leases 1148,322)
Lease liabilities recagnised at 1 January 2019 1,376,667

21. Corporate Shareholders

PDuring the year ended 31 December 2018, there were restruciuring of shareholding
amony ihe shareholders and the equity interest of corporate shareholders, Suez Capital
Sdn., Bhd. has decreased itg inferest in the Company from 64.02% 1o 43.11% upon the
completion of share restructuring. The Company is now a joint venture belween
Sunsuria (KL) Sdn. Bhd., Suez Capital Sdn, Bhd. and Dasar Temasek Sdn. Bhd.,
companies which are incorporated in Maiaysia. Accorgdingly, the Directors regard
Sunsuria (KL) Sdn. Bhd., Suez Capital Sdn. Bhd. and Dasar Temasek Sdn. Bhd. as its
corporate sharehoiders, from the dale of shares transferred and untit the date of this
report.

22. Subsequent event

The coronavirus (Covid-1%) pandemic was announced by the World Healih
Organisation in Mareh 2020 given the outbreak of the virus in countries across the world
including Mataysia. The Covid-19 pandemic has resulled in disruptions to businesses
and various macro-economic impacts,

The Company considers that the effect related {o the outbreak to be a non-adjusting
svent as it was not 2 condition that existed as at 31 December 2019, the end of reporting
period. Accordingly, the gurrent conditions arising frony this cutbresk do not have an
impact on the carrying amounis reperted for the financial year ended 31 December
2019.

As al the date of the financial stalements are avthorized for issuance, the Covid-19
situation is still evolving and unpredictable. As a result, it is not practicable for the
Company to estimate the financial effect of Covid-18, if any. at this juncture. The
Company is actively manitoring and managing the Company’s operaticns fo minimise
any impacts that may arise from Covid-19.
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Bangsar Hill Park Development Sdn. Bhd.
{Registration No. 188901017855 (492755-M))
{incorporated in Malaysia)

Statement by Directors pursuant to
Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016

In the opmien of the Directors, the financial statements set cut on pages 5 tv 47 are drawn
up i accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporiing Standards, International Financial
Reporing Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2018 in Malaysia so as lo
give a true and fair view of the financial pasition of the Company as of 31 Dacember 2519

and of is finrancial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.

Signed on bahaif of the Board of Direclors in acenrdance with a resolution of the Directors:

DafukTer{.eonngng U
Director

Petaling Jaya. Sefangor

Daie: 23 June 2020
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Bangsar Hill Park Development Sdn. Bhd.
{Registration No. 1998010178556 {492755-M))
{Incorperated irr Malaysia)

Statutory declaration pursuant to
Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016

|, Datuk Ter Leong Hing. the Director primarily responsibie for the financial managemaent of
Bangsar Hill Park Development 3dn. Bhd., do selemnly and sincerely declare that the
financial statements set out on pages 5 to 47 are, (o the best of my knowledge and behef,
carrest and | make this solemn declaration conscienliously believing the declaration o be

frug, and by virtue of the Stalutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and sofemnly deciared by the abovenamed Datuk Ter Leong Hing, NRIC:620701.

10-5308, at Pelaling Jaya in the state of Selanger on 43 June 2020,

Datuk Ter Leong Hing

Before me;
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KPMG

KPHG PLTY Telephona +88 {3} 7721 3384
LLRO040DBY-LCA & AF 0758} Fax +60 {3} 7741 3399
Chariered Atcountants Website  wwwkpmg.com.my

Levet 50, KEMWE Towet

4, First Avenwe, Bandar Ltams
47500 Petaling Java

Selangor Darul Fhsan, Maiaysia

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF BANGSAR HILL PARK
DEVELOPMENT SDN. BHD.

(Company No. 482755-M)
{Incorporated in Maiaysia)

Report on the Audif of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bangsar Hill Park Development Sdn.
Bhd., which comprise the siatement of financial position as at 31 Decamber 2019,
and the statement of profit or loss and ¢ther comprehensive (ncome, sfatement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, inclucting a summary of significant accounting poiicies,
as zet put on pages 5to 47,

In our opinion. the accompanying finsncial slatements give a frue and fair view of
the financial position of 1he Company as at 3t December 2019, and of i#s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in aucordance with
Mataysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reparting
Standards and the requirements of the Companiss Act 2018 in Malaysia.

Basis for Dpinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with approved standargs on zuditing in
Malaysia and International Standards on Audding. Our responsiailities under
those standards are further described in the Auvditors’ Responsibilities for the
Aud? of the Financial Statements section of our auditars’ report. We believe (hat
the audil evidence we have ohbtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide s
basis for our opinion,

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We ara independent of the Company in accordarae with the By-Laws {on
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice} of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants {"By-Laws"} and the Intemationa! Elhics Standards Board for
Accountams’ Code of Eihies for Profassional Accoumtants {"ESBA Cede'}, and
we have {ulfilled our other ethical responsibiities in accerdance with the By-Laws
and the |ESBA Code.
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Bangsar Hill Park Development Sdn. Bhd,
(Company No. 452755-M}

Independent Auditors” Report for the
Financizl Year Ended 31 December 2019

Matetial Uncertainty Related to Geing Concern

We draw attention to Note 1{b) of the financial statements, which indicates that
the Company incurred a net joss of RM4,148,355 during the financial year ended
31 December 2019 and, as of that date, the Company’s current tiabiliies
exceetied s current assats by RM128, 481,273, As stated in Note 1(b). these
events of conditions, alang with other matters as set forth in Note 1(b), indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Company io conlinue as a going concern, Qur opirion is not modified in
respect of this matier.

information Other than the Financial $tatements and Auditors’ Report
Thereon

The Disectors of the Company are responsibie for the other information. The other
informaticn comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does
nat include the financial statemards of the Company and our auditors’ repon
therean.

Our opinion on the financal statements of the Company does not cover the
Direciors” Report and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
hereon.

In sonnection with our audit of the financiai siatemenis of the Company, our
responsibility is to read the Directors’ Report and, in doing sa, consider whether
the Directors’ Report is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the
Company or pur knowiledge obtained in the audil, or stherwise appears to be
materially misstated. H, based on the work we have performed, wea conclude that
there is 2 material missialement of the Direciors” Repori, we are required to
report that fact, We have nothing 19 report in this regard.

Responsihilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company ara resparnsible for the prenaration of financial
statements of the Company that give a frue and fair view in ascerdance with
Malaysian Firancial Reporting Standerds, inlerngtional Firancial Reporiing
Stancards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Maiayea, The
Directors are also responsie for such internal cortrol as (ke Directors determing
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial siatements of the Company
that are free from material misstalemernt, whether due o fraud or erior.

I preparing the financial statemeants of the Company, the Direclors are
responsible for agsessing the ability of the Cormpany to continue as & going
concarr, disclosirg, as applicable, matlers related lo going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unigss the Directors eithar inlend to liquidate
the Company of 1o cease operations, or have no realistic alfernative but to do 50,

1
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Bangsar Hill Park Development Sdn, Bhd,
{Company No. 4827558}
Indegendent Auditors' Repart far the

Financial Year Enced 37 Decamber 2619

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements of the Compariy as a whole are free from matenal misstatement,
whether due o fraud or error, and fo issue an audilors’ report that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not @
guarantes that an augit conducied in accordance with approved standards on
awdling in Malaysia and Internationat Standards on Audiing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise from fraug or error
and are considered material , individually or in the aggregate. they could
reasonably be expected to influence the sconomic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.,

As part of an audit in socordance with approved standards on auditing in
Malaysia and international Standards ory Auditing, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s |dentify and assess the nsks of material missiatement of the financial
statements of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures respoensive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that i sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than {or one resulting from error, as fraud may irvolve cofiusion,
forgery. intentional omissions, misrepreseniations, or the override of infernal
condrol,

« Obtain an undersianding of internal cortro! relevant to the audit in order to
design auct procedures that are appropriate @ the circumstances, hut not for
the purpose of expressing an opinign on the effectivenass of e injernal
condrot of the Company.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of actounting pol.ces used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimales and related disclosures made hy the
Directors.

« Conclude on the approgrialeness of the Rireciors’ use of Iba going concerm
pasis of accounting and, based an the audit evidence oblained, whether a
material ynceriainty exists related to events or ponditions that may cast
s'gnificant doubl an (he abiity of the Comparny to continue as a going
concern, i we conclude that a matenial uncertainly exists, we are reguired (o
draw aftention in gur suditors’ repori o the relaled disclosuras in the financial
statemenis of the Company or, if guch disclosures are inadequate. fo modify
our opirion. Gur conciusions are hased on the aucit evidence phlained up to
the date of our audilers’ report. However, future evenis or conditions may
cause the Company i cease o continug as 8 gaing Loncem.

« Evaluate the overai presentatian, structure and conlent of the financial
statemants of the Company, including the disciosures, and whather the
firzncial staiements of the Company represent the uncerlying transactions
and avents in a manner that gives a frue and fair view,

We communicaie with the Directers regarding. among other matiers, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incliding any
significant deficiencies in internal conirol that we identfy during our audit.

52
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Bangsar Hill Park Developinert Sdn. Bhd.
[Company No. 482755-M}
ndepandent Auditors’ Report for the

Financiagl Year Ended 3% Jecember 2015

Other Matter

This report 1s made solely jo the members of the Company, 8s a body, in
accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the
content of this report,

W -

KPMG PLT Lam Shuh Siang
{LLPOO10081-LCA & AF 0758} Approvat Number: 03045/02/2021 J
Chartered Accourtants Charlered Accouniant

Petaling Jaya

Date: 23 June 2020
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Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-F)

BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Reports and Financial Statements
31 December 2019

ETH Lumsisciss,,
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Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-H)

BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Reports and Financial Statements
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Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-H)

BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors hereby submit their report together with the andited financial statements of the Group
and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, The principal activity of its subsidiary is

disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of
these activities during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Group Company
RM RM

Loss attributable to:
- Owners of the Company (737,228) (4,938)
- Non-controlling interests {680,587) -

(1,417,815) (4,938)
DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the current financial year,

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no materizl transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

There was no issue of shares or debentures by the Company during the financial year.

OPTIONS
No option has been granted during the financial year to take up unissued shares of the Company.
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Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-H)

DIRECTORS

The directors in office during the financial year and during the period from end of the financial year to
the date of the report are:

Johari Bin Said
Agmal Azam Bin Ahmad

The name of directors of the Company’s subsidiary company who served during the financial year
and up to the date of this report, not including those directors mentioned above, are as follows:

Datuk Ter Leong Hing

Datuk Yang Kian Joo

Datuk Haji Yasran Bin Haji Hussain
Abdul Hadi Bin Ahmad

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

According to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings required to be kept under Section 59 of the
Companies Act 2016, the interest of directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares or
debentures in the Company during the financial year were as follows:-

e e n s No. of Ordinary Shares -—------—--=-
As at As at
01.01.2019 Bought Sold 31122019
Johari Bin Said 99,990 - - 99,990

By virtue of his shareholding in the company, Johari Bin Said is deemed to have interests in shares in
its related corporations during the financial year to the extent of the Company’s interests, in
accordance with Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Details of the directors® remuneration are disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements,

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any
benefit (other than the directors’ remvmeration shown in Note 17 to the finamcial statements) by
reason of a contract made by the company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of
which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial
interest.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement
whose object was to enable the directors to acquire benefits through the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the company or any other body corporate.
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Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-H)

INDEMNIFYING DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR AUDITORS

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the financial
year, for any person who is or has been the director, officer or auditor of the Company.

SUBSIDIARY
The details of the Company’s subsidiary are disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took
reasonable steps:

(a) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the
making of allowance for impairment losses on receivables and satisfied themselves that there
were 1o known bad debts and that no allowance for impairment losses on receivables is required;
and

(b) to ensure that any current assets, which were unlikely to reslise in the ordinary course of business
including the value of current assets as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the
Company had been written down to an amount which the cwrrent assets might be expected so to
realise,

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(a) which would render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for
impairment losses on receivables inadequate to any substantial extent; or

(b) which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company misleading; or

(¢) which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

In the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report:

(@) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen which, in the opinion of
the directors, would substantially affect the results of the operations of the Group and of the
Company for the current financial year; and

{b) no charge has arisen on the assets of the Group and of the Company which secures the liabilities
of any other person nor has any contingent lability arisen in the Group and the Company.

No contingent or other Hability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely
to become enforceable within the year of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in
the opinion of the directors, will or may affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet its
obligations when they fall doe.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in
this report or the financial statements which would render any amount stated in the financial
statements misleading.
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Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-E)

In the opinion of the directors:

(a) the resulis of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not
substantially affected by an items, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature; and

{(b) there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report
any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the
results of the operation of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this
report is made.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of auditors’ remuneration are disclosed in Note 74 to the financial staternents.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR -

The significant events subsequent to the end of the financial year are disclosed in Note 18 fo the
financial statements,
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AUDITORS

The auditors, Messrs Tong & Associates, Chartered Accountants, have expressed their willingness to
continue in office.

This report was approved and signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a
resolution of the directors.

i Bin Said
irector

-

X

Agmal Azam Bin Ahmad
Director

Date: 4 7 JUN 2020
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Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-H)

BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN, BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
Pursuant 1o Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016

In the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 11 to 32 are drawn up in
accordance with Malaysian Private Entities Reporting Standard and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as (o give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and of their financial performance and cash flows

for the financial year ended on that date.

Signedon f 7 JUN 02

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in
aceordangdwith a resolution of the Directors

w
ri Bin Said

% Pl

Agmal Azam Bin Ahmad

STATUTORY DECLARATION
Pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016

I, Johart Bin Said, I/C No 700405-10-5001, being the director primarily responsible for the financial
management of Bumilex Construction Sdn. Bhd., do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of
my knowledge and belicf the financial statements set out on pages 11 to 32 are comrect, and [ make
this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions
of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960,

Subseribed and solemnly

declared in Petaling Jaya in the N
State of Selangor Darul Ehsan on /4

y

Before ine: % 1 A

Commissioner for®aths
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E TH Tonyg & Associates

Chartered Accountants [AF 002034)

E-03-01, Pacific Place Commercial Centre,
Jakan PJU 1A/4, Ara Damansara,

47301 Petaling Jaya,

Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia,

Tel. no. +603 7493 4087
www.ethconsulting.com.my
audit@sthconsulfing.com.my

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BUMIELEX CONSTRUCTION SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-E0)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have aundited the financial statements of Bumilex Construction Sdn. Bhd., which comprise the
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2019 of the Group and of the Company, and the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of
the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 11 to 32.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and of their financial performance
and their cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Private Entities
Reporting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethies, Conduct
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“TESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical respongibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA
Code.

Material Uneertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 2(b) in the financial statements, which indicates that the Group and the
Company incurred a net loss of RM1,417,815 and RM4,938 during the financial year ended 31
December 2019 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RM31,243,932 and RM2,481,232. As stated in Note 2(b), these events or conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Note 2(b), indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter,
7
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E TH Tong & Associates
Chartered Accountents [AF 002034}
Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-H)

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors® Report Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the directors’ report but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the directors’
report and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our
responsibility is to read the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether the directors® report is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
directors’ report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group
and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Private Entities
Reporting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to lignidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to gbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company a$ a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in
Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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E TH Tong & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants JAF 002034]

Registrotion No. 200701026935 (784956-H)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resuiting from error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
orissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order fo design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group and of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors,

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the
Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur
conélusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors® report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the
Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the
subsidiary of which we have not acted as auditors, is disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements.
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Other Matter

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose, We do not assume responsibility to
any other person for the content of this report.

e Q/Q

TONG & ASSOCIATES TONG SOON THIAM
[AF 002034] 03191/08/20217
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant
Petaling Jaya,

Date: 17 June 2020
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Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-H)

BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2019

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM RM RM RM
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in a subsidiary 4 - - 2,550,000 2,550,000
Property, plaut and equipment 5 9,818 8,862 - -
Goodwill on consolidation 3 213,402 240,077 - -
Land held for development 7 29470310 - - .
29,693,530 248,939 2,550,000 2,550,000
CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables and deposits 8 111,064 130,138 25,009 25,009
Property development costs 9 - 29,579,128 - -
Cash and bank balances 10 104,680 107,991 74,991 74,991
215,744 29,817,257 100,000 100,000
TOTAL ASSETS 29,909,274 30,066,196 2,650,000 2,650,000
f——  _ —— §———————_§ ___—_——

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Registration Ne. 200701026935 (784956-H)

BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2019
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM RM RM RM

EQUITY AND LIABILITY
EQUITY
Share capital 11 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Accumulated losses (2,000,594) (1,263,366)  (31,232) (26,294)
Equity attributable to owners of

the company: {1,900,594)  (1,163,366) 68,768 73,706
Non-controlling interests 350,192 1,030,779 - -
TOTAL EQUITY (1,550,402) (132,587) 68,768 73,706
LIABILITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables iz - 6,075 - -
QOther payables and acoruals 13 31,459,676 30,192,708 2,581,232 2,576,294
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 31,459,676 30,198,783 2,581,232 2,576,294
TOTAL LIABILITY 31,459,676 30,198,783 2,581,232 2,576,294
TOTAL EQUITY AND

LIABIITY 29,909,274 30,066,196 2,650,000 2,650,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-H)

BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM RM RM EM
OTHER INCOME 31 31 - -
ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENSES (1,417,846 {291,545) {4,938) (3,163)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 14 (1,417,815) (291,514) (4,938) (3,163)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15 - - - -
LOSS AFTER TAXATION/
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
EXPENSES FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR (1,417,815) (291,514) (4,938 ) (3,163)
LOSS AFTER TAXATION/
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
EXPENSES FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:-
Owners of the Company (737,228) (163,293) (4,938) {3,163)
Non-controlling interests (680,587) (128.221) - -

(1,41 7,8122 (291,514) (4,938! (3,163)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN. BHD.

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019
Non-
Accumylated controlling
Share capital  losses Total interests  Total equity
RM RM RM RM M

Group
Balance at I Janmary 2018 100,000  (1,160,073) (1,000,073} 1,159,000 158,927
Loss after taxation/Total

comprehensive expenses * ,

for the financial year - (163,293)  (163,293)  (128221)  (291,514)
At 31 December 2013 100,000  (1,263,366) (1,163,366) 1,030,779  {(132,587)
Loss after taxation/Total

comprehensive expenses

for the financial year - (737,228)  (737,228)  (680,587) ({(1,417,815)
Balance at 31 December 2019 100,000 (2,000,594}  (1,900,594) 350,192 (1,550,402}

Accumulated
Share cgpital  losses Tofal
RM RM RM

Company
Balance at 1 January 2018 100,000 (23,131) 76,869
Loss after taxation/

Total comprehensive expenses

for the financial year - {3,163) (3,163)
At 31 December 2018 100,000 (26,294) 73,706
Loss after taxation/

Total comprehensive expenses

for the financial year - (4,938) {4,938}
Balance at 31 December 2019 100,000 (31,232) 68,768

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
14
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BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019
Growp Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM RM M RM

CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (1,417,815  (291,514) (4,938) (3,163)
Adjusiments for:
Amortisation of goodwill 26,675 26,675 .
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,913 1,966 - -
Property, plant and equipment written off 2 348 - -
Interest income _ an (1) -
Operaiing loss before working capital changes (1,388,256)  (262,556) (4,938) (3,163)
Decrease/(Increase} in receivables 19074 {2,250,520) - -
[ncrease/(Decrease) in payables 1,260,803 2,241,235 (1,901) 781
Decrease in land held for development 108,818 - - -
Net cash generated from/(used in) aperations 528 (271,841) (6,339) (2,382
Interest received 3] 31 - -
NET CASH GENERATED FROMAUSED IN}

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 560 (271L.810) (6839 __ (2382
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITY

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(3,871) (7.455)

‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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{Incorporated in Malaysia)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM RM M RM

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITY
Advances from a subsidiary - - 6,839 2,382
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES - - 6,839 2,382
NET DECREASE [N CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (3311 (279,265) - -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR. 107,991 387,256 74,991 74,991
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END

OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 104,680 107,991 74,991 74,991
Cash and cash equivalent comprises of:
Cash and bank balances 104,680 107,991 74,991 74,991

BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN, BHD.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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I.

BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2019

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a private limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activity of its
subsidiary are disclosed in Nore 4 to the financial statements. There have been no significant
changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

The address of the registered office of the Company is Room 1.02, 50A & 52A, Jalan Pasar,
41400 Klang, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The address of the principal place of business of the Company is L3.01 & L3.02, KL Gateway
Mall, No. 2, Jalan Kerinchi, Gerbang Kerinchi Lestari, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah
Persekutuan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

®)

©

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Malaysian Private Entities Reporting Standard (“MPERS”) and the requirements of
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis other than as
disclosed in the financial statements,

As at 31 December 2019, the Group and the Company incurred a net loss of RM1,417,815
and RM4,938 during the financial year and, as of that date, the Group’s and the Company’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by RM31,243,932 and RM?2,481,232. The ability
of the Group and the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent upon the
financial support of the directors of the company. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would be required should the going concern basis proved io be invalid.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM”), which is the
Company’s functional currency.
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3'

(d) Used of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MPERS requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any
future years affected.

There are no significant areas of estimation mmcertainty and critical judgement in applying
accounting policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements other than the following:

(i}  Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on the straight-line
method or another systematic method that reflects the consumption of the economic
benefits of the asset over its useful life. Estimates are applied in the selection of the
depreciation method, the useful lives and the residual values. The actual consumption
of the economic benefits of the property, plant and equipment may differ from the
estimates applied and this may lead to a gain or loss on an eventual disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment.

(iiy Measurement of Income Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the Group’s and the Company’s
provision for cwrrent and deferred taxes because the ultimate tax liability for the Group
and the Company as a whole is uncertain. When the final outcome of the taxes payable
is determined with the tax authorities, the amounts might be different from the initial
estimates of the taxes payable. Such differences may impact the current and deferred
taxes in the year when such determination is made. The Group and the Company will
adjust for the differences over-or under- provision of current or deferred taxes in the
current year in which those differences arise.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The aceounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the years presented in
these financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries company made up to the end of the financial year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is the power to govem the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to
the effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate.

Intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure
consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.

@

(i)

(iii)

()

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the purchase method. Under the
purchase method, the cost of a business combination is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issned plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination.

If an associate becomes a subsidiary, the Group remeasures its previously held equity
inferests to fair value and any cotresponding gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The remeasured carrying amount form parts of the cost of business combination.

Non-controlling interests in the acquire is measured at the non-controlling inferest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s recognised identifiable net assets at the date of
acquisition.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position, separately from the equity attributable to owners of the Company.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is aftributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controliing interests have a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries without change of confrol

All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests is adjusted and the fair value of
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity of the Group. No gain or
loss is recognised on the change,

Loss of control

Upon the loss of contro} of a subsidiary, the Group recognises any gain or loss in profit
or loss which is calculated as the difference between the proceeds from the disposal of
the subsidiary and its carrying amount at the date of disposal.

If the Group retains any interest in the former subsidiary, that investment is accounted
for as a financial asset from the date of entity ceases to be a subsidiary, provided that it
does not become an associate. The carrying amount on that date is regarded as the cost
on initial measurement of the financial asset.
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(b) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration of subsidiaries
acquired over the group's share of the fair values of their identifiable assets and liabilities at
the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is amortised using the straight line method over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

The carrying amount of goodwill is written down for impairment if the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying value.

(c) Investment in subsidiary

Investments in subsidiary is measured in the statement of financial position of the Company
at cost less any impairment losses. The cost of the investments includes transaction costs.

(d) Financial instruments
(1) Initial recognition and measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments,

A financial instrument is recognised initially at the transaction price (including
transaction costs except in the initial measurement of a financial asset or financial
Hability that is measured at fair value through profit or loss) unless the arrangement
constifutes, in effect, a financing transaction. If the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, the financial asset or financial liability is measured at the present value of
the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

(ii} Subsequent measurement

Debts instrnments that meet the following conditions are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

a) Returns to the holder are determinable, ¢.g. a fixed amount and/or variable rate of
return benchmark against a quoted or observable interest rate;

b) There is no contractual provision that could result in the holder losing the principal
amount or any interest atiributable to the current or prior years; and

¢} Prepayment option, if any, is not contingent on future events.

Debt instruments that are classified as current assets or current liabilities are measured at
the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration expected io be paid or
received unless the arrangement constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction.

Invesiment in non-puttable ordinary shares are measured at cost less impairment, unless
the shares are publicly traded or their fair valve can otherwise be measured reliably, in
which case the investments are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss,

All other financial assets or financial liabilities not measured at amortised cost or cost
less impairment are measured at fair value with changes recognised in profit or loss.
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All financial assets (except for financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss) are assessed at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment. An impairment loss is measured as follows:

» TFor an instrument measured at amortised cost, the impairment loss is difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

¢ For an insttument measured at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is the
difference between asset’s carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that
would be received for the assets if it were to be sold at the reporting date,

(ifi} Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or are settled, or control of the asset is
not retained or substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are
transferred to another party. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset derecog;msed and the consideration
received, including any newly created rights and obligations, is recogmsed in profit or
loss,

A financial liability or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a
financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or Ioss.

(e} Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets
and any other costs directly atiributable to bringing the asset to working condition’ for its
intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located. The cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of
materials and direct labour, Cost also may include transfers from equity of any gain or
loss on qualifying hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and is recognised net within “other income™ or “other expenses”
respectively in profit or loss.

21

IvV-77



APPENDIX IV(B) — AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BUMILEX FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2019 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON (Cont'd)

Registration No. 200701026935 (784956-H)

(ii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in the carrying amonnt of the item if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within the component will flow to the company, and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised to
profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing property, plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant
components of individual assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is
different from the remainder of that asset, then that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant and equipment from the
date that they are available for use,

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Office equipment, firniture and fittings 10% - 40%
Renovation 20%

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks and
highly liquid investments which have an insignificant risk of changes in fafr value with
original maturities of three months or less, and are used by the company in the management
of short-term commitments. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged deposits.
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{g) Impairment

@

(if)

Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets (except for financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss) are assessed for impairment at each reporting period date when there is an
objective evidence of impairment.

For a financial asset measured af amortised cost, the impairment loss is the difference
between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash
flows discounted at the finanecial asset’s original effective rate,

For a financial asset measured at cost less impairment, the impairment loss is the
difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the best estimate of the
amount that would be received for the financial asset if it were to be sold at the reporting
date.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or logs immediately.

H, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event oceurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previous recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying
amount of the financial assets does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The
amount of impairment reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smailest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or cash-generating units.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-
generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount,

An impairmert loss is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised in
prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to defermine the recoverable amount since the Iast
impairment loss was recognised. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the loss had been recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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(h) Equity instruments

®

@

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are
remeasured subsequently.

(i) Tssue expenses

Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments classified as equity are recognised
as a deduction from equity, net of any related tax benefit,

(il Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short~term cash bonus
or profit-sharing plans if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Defined contributions plans

The Compatnty make statutory contributions to approved provident funds and the
contributions made are charged to profit or loss in the period to which they relate. When
the contributions have been paid, the company has no further payment obligations.

Property development activities

Land held for development is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
classified as a non-current asset where no development activities are carried out or where
development activities are not expected to be completed within the normal operating cycle.

Property development costs comprise all costs that are directly attributable to development
activities including costs associated with the acquisition of land, costs related directly to a
specific property development activity and costs attributable to the development activities in
general and can be allocated to the project.

Property development revenue comprises the selling price agreed in the sale and purchase
agreement and amy additional revenue due to variation in development work.

When the development and construction activities have commenced and the financial
outcome of the development activities can be reliably estimated, property development
revenue is recognised for the development units sold and determined by reference to the stage
of completion of the development activity at the end of the reporting period. Stage of
completion is determined based on the proportion that property development costs incurred
for work performed to date bear to the estimated total property development costs.
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&)

o

When the outcome of a property development activity cannot be estimated reliably, property
development revenue is recognised only to the extent of property development costs incurred
that it is probable will be recoverable, and the associated property development costs on the
development units sold are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Any expected loss on a specific property development activity is recognised as an expense
immediately (including any further costs expected to be incurred over the defects liability

period).

Property development revenue and expenses recognised are immediately written back as
500D as a rescission or revocation of sale occurs,

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss except for the extent that it relates to a business combination or
items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position
and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences:
the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or labilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit nor loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultanecusly.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that fiture taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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4'

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY
Company
2019 2018
RM RM
Unquoted shares, at cost 2,550,000 2,550,000
I | — - ]
Details of the subsidiary, which is incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:
Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary 2019 2018 Principal activity
% %

Montflex Sdn. Bhd. * 51 51 Property development

*Audited by other firm of chartered accountants.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The details of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Office equipment,
Group furniture and fittings Renovation Total
RM RM RM
Cost
At 1 Jamary 2018 175,887 231,685 407,572
Addtion 7455 - 7455
Written off {108,891} - (108,891)
At 31 December 2018 74,451 231,685 306,136
Addition 3,871 - 3871
Written off (22,054) (231,685) {253.739)
At 31 December 2019 56,268 - 56,268
Accumulated depreciation
At ] Janvary 2018 172,166 231,685 403,851
Charge for the year 1,966 - 1,966
Written off (108,543) - (108,543}
At 31 December 2018 65,589 231,685 297274
Charge for the year 2913 - 2913
Written off (22,052 (231,685) (253.137)
At 31 December 2019 46,450 - 45,450
Net book value
At 31 December 2019 9818 - 9818
At 31 December 2018 8,862 - 8,862
26
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6. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION

Group
2019 2018
RM RM
At 1 January 240,077 266,752
Less: Accumulated amortisation (26,675) (26,675)
At 31 December 213,402 240,077
7. LAND HELD FOR DEVELOFMENT
Group
2019 2018
RM RM
At 1 January
Land - -
Development cost . -
Land
- classified from property development cost 7,084,500 -
Development costs
- cost incurred during the year 859,162 -
- classified from property development cost 21,526,648 -
22,385,810 -
At 31 December
Land 7,084,500 -
Development cost 22,385,810 -
25,470,310 -
8. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS
Group Company
2019 2018 2018 2018
RM RM RM RM
Other receivables 27,354 43,728 24,999 24,999
Deposits 83,700 86,400 - -
Amount due from a
shareholder 10 10 10 10
111,064 130,138 25,009 25,009
27
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9. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

RM RM RM RM
Costs to fulfili a confract
At 1 January 29,579,128 26,983,219 - -
Add: Cost incutred during the

financial year - 2,595,909 - -

Less: Charge to profit or loss (967,980} - - -

Less: Reclassified to inventories
property development costs  (28,611,148) - - -

At 31 December . 29,579,128 - .

The cost that are related directly to the contract are capitalised as contract costs during the current
financial year. These costs are expected to be recoverable and are amortised to profit or loss when
the related revenue is recognised.

Included in the property developments costs are the following charges made during the financial

year:
Group
2019 2018
RM RM
Directors' remuneration;
- Salaries and other emoluments - 358,408
- Defined contribution plans - 35,809
- Social security contributions ~ 9
10, CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM RM RM RM
Cash on hand and at banks 103,552 106,894 74,991 74,991
Fixed deposits with licensed bank 1,128 1,097 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 104,680 107,991 74,991 74,991
28
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11. SHARE CAPITAL

13.

14.

Issued and Fully Paid-Up

Company

Ordinary shares

2019 2018
Number of shares
100,000 100,000

2019
RM

100,000

2018
RM

100,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the

Company and are entitled to one vote per ordinary share at meetings of the Company.

TRADE PAYABLES

The normal trade credit term granted to the Group ranges from 30 to 60 days (2018: 30 days to 60

days).

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables
Accruals
Amount due to a subsidiary

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation
is stated affer charging:
Auditors' remuneration
Amortisation of goodwill
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment
written off
Realised loss on foreign exchange

and crediting:
Interest income

V-85

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM RM RM RM
31,449,956 30,183,408 2,556,039 2,557,940
9,720 9,300 2,300 2,300
- - 22,893 16,054
31,459,676 30,192,708 2,581,232 2,576,294
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM RM RM RM
6,800 6,800 1,300 1,800
26,675 26,675 - -
2913 1,966 - -
2 348 - -
- 10,475 - -
31 31 - -
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15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No income tax expense is provided for the financial year a5 the Group and the Company does not
have chargeable income.

The temporary differences attributable to the deferred tax assets which are not recognised in the
statements of financial position are as follows:~

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM RM RM RM
Other temporary differences (1,000) (4,000) - -
Unabsorbed capital
allowances 9,000 7,000 . -
Unutilised tax losses 3,001,000 1,623,000 - -
3,009,000 1,626,000 - .
16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value
Carrying through Amortised Cost less
Group amount profit or loss cost impairment
2019 RM RM RM RM
Financial assets
Other receivables 27,364 Co- 27,364 -
Cash and bank balances 104,630 - 104,680 -
132,044 - 132,044 -
Financial liabilities
Other payables and accruals  (31.459,676) - (31,459,676) -
2018
Financial assets
Other receivables 43,738 - 43,738 -
Cash and bank balances 107,991 - 107,991 -
151,729 - 151,729 -
Financial liabilities
Trade payables {6,075} - (6,075) -
Other payables and accruals  (30,192,708) - {30,192,708) -
~ {30,198,783) - (30,198,783) -
30
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Fair value
Carrying through Amortised Cost less

Company amount profit or loss cost impairment
2019 RM RM RM RM
Financial assets
Other receivables 25,008 - 25,009 -
Cash and bank balances 74,991 - 74,991 -

100,000 - 100,000 -
Financial liability
Other payables and accruals __ (2,581,232) - (2,581,232) -
2018
Finanecial assets
Other receivables 25,009 - " 25,009 -
Cash and bank balances 74,891 - 74,991 -

100,000 - 100,000 -
Financial liability
Other payables and accruals (2,576,294) - (2,576,294) -

17. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURE
Key management personnel
Directors
Group
2019 2018
RM RM
Directors' remuneration:
- salavies 60,000 358,408
- defined contribution plan - 75,809
- other emoluments - 69
31
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18.

19,

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Coronavirus outbreak

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the Coronavirus (“Covid-19”)
outbreak as a pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread across the globe. On 16 March 2020, the
Malaysian Government has imposed the Movement Control Order (*MCO”) starting from 18
March 2020 to curb the spread of the Covid-19 outbreak in Malaysia. The Covid-19 outbreak also
resulted in travel restriction, lockdown and other precautionary measures imposed in various
countries. The emergence of the Covid-19 outbreak since early 2020 has brought significant
sconomic uncertainties in Malaysia and markets in which the company operates.

For the Company’s financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the
Covid-19 outbreak and the related impacts are considered non-adjusting events in accordance with
Section 32 of MPERS Evenfs after the Reporting Period. Consequently, there is no impact on the
recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

The Company is unable to reasonably estimate the financial impact of Covid- 19 for the financial
year ending 31 December 2020 to be disclosed in the financial statements as the situation is still
evolving and the uncertainty of the outcome of the current events, It is however certain that the
local and worldwide measures against the spread of the Covid-19 will have adverss effects on the
Company’s sales, operations and supply chains. The Company will continuously monitor the
tmpact of Covid-19 on its operations and its financial performance. The Company will also be
taking appropriate and timely measures to minimjise the impact of the outbreak on the Company’s
operations.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 17 June 2020 by the Board of Directors.
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APPENDIX V — ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Our Board has seen and approved this Circular and they collectively and individually accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this Circular and confirm that, after
making all reasonable enquiries and to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other
facts, the omission of which would make any statement in this Circular misleading.

2, CONSENT AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

21

Maybank IB

Maybank IB, being the Principal Adviser for the Proposals, has given and has not
subsequently withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion of its name and all references
thereto in the form and context in which it appears in this Circular.

Maybank IB and its related and associated businesses (“Maybank Group") form a
diversified financial group and are engaged in a wide range of investment and commercial
banking, brokerage, securities trading, asset and fund management and credit transaction
services businesses. The Maybank Group has engaged and may in the future, engage in
transactions with and perform services for our Group and/or any of our affiliates, in addition
to the role set out in this Circular. In addition, in the ordinary course of business, any
member of the Maybank Group may at any time offer or provide its services to or engage
in any transaction (on its own account or otherwise) with any member of our Group, our
shareholders, and/or our affiliates and/or any other entity or person, hold long or short
positions in securities issued by our Company and/or our affiliates, and may trade or
otherwise effect transactions for its own account or the account of its other customers in
debt or equity securities or senior loans of any member of our Group and/or our affiliates.
This is a result of the businesses of the Maybank Group generally acting independently of
each other, and accordingly, there may be situations where parts of the Maybank Group
and/or its customers now have or in the future, may have interest or take actions that may
conflict with the interest of our Group. Nonetheless, the Maybank Group is required to
comply with the applicable laws and regulations issued by the relevant authorities
governing its advisory business, which require, among others, segregation between
dealing and advisory activities and Chinese wall between different business divisions.

As at the LPD, the Maybank Group has extended credit facilities to our Group in its ordinary
course of business. Notwithstanding this, Maybank 1B confirms that the aforesaid lending
relationship will not give rise to a conflict of interest situation in its capacity as Principal
Adviser for the Proposals as:

(i the extension of the credit facilities arose in the ordinary course of business of the
Maybank Group;

(i)  the conduct of the Maybank Group in its banking business is strictly regulated by,
among others, the Financial Services Act 2013, Islamic Financial Services Act 2013
and the Maybank Group’s own internal controls and checks; and

(i)  the total outstanding amount owed by our Group to the Maybank Group is not
material when compared to the audited NA of the Maybank Group as at 31
December 2019 of RM81.6 billion.

Maybank IB confirms that it is not aware of any circumstance that exists or is likely to exist
which would give rise to a possible conflict of interest situation in its capacity as Principal
Adviser for the Proposals.
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2.2
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2.4

Newfields

Newfields, being the Financial Adviser for the Proposals, has given and has not
subsequently withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion of its name and all references
thereto in the form and context in which it appears in this Circular.

Newfields is not aware of any circumstance that exists or is likely to exist which would give
rise to a possible conflict of interest situation in its capacity as Financial Adviser for the
Proposals.

M&A Securities

M&A Securities, being the Independent Adviser for the Proposals, has given and has not
subsequently withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion of its name, the Independent
Advice Letter and all references thereto in the form and context in which they appear in
this Circular.

M&A Securities is not aware of any circumstance that exists or is likely to exist which would
give rise to a possible conflict of interest situation in its capacity as Independent Adviser
for the Proposals.

CBRE|WTW

CBRE|WTW, being the Independent Valuer for the valuation of the Bangsar Land and the
Development Rights, has given and has not subsequently withdrawn its written consent to
the inclusion of its name, the Master Valuation Certificate and all references thereto in the
form and context in which they appear in this Circular.

CBRE|WTW is not aware of any circumstance that exists or is likely to exist which would
give rise to a possible conflict of interest situation in its capacity as Independent Valuer for
the valuation of the Bangsar Land and the Development Rights.

3. MATERIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

3.1

Material commitments
Save for as disclosed below, as at 30 September 2020, our Board is not aware of any

material commitments incurred or known to be incurred by our Group, which may have a
material impact on the profits and/or NA of our Group:

RM’000

Capital commitment
- Approved and contracted for investment properties 121,765



APPENDIX V — ADDITIONAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

3.2 Contingent liabilities

As at 30 September 2020, our Board is not aware of any contingent liabilities incurred or
known to be incurred by our Group which, upon becoming enforceable, may have a
material impact on the profits and/or NA of our Group.

4, MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at the LPD, our Group is not engaged in any material litigation, claims or arbitration, either as
plaintiff or defendant and our Board is not aware of any proceedings, pending or threatened
against our Group or of any facts likely to give rise to any proceedings which may materially affect
the business or financial position of our Group.

5. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at our registered office at Suite 8,

Main Tower, Sunsuria Avenue, Persiaran Mahogani, Kota Damansara PJU 5, 47810 Petaling

Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia during normal business hours from Mondays to Fridays

(except public holidays) from the date of this Circular up to and including the date of our

forthcoming EGM:

0] our constitution and the constitutions of BHP Development, Bumilex and Montflex;

(i)  audited consolidated financial statements of our Company for the past 2 FYEs 30
September 2018 and 30 September 2019, and the latest unaudited consolidated financial

statements of our Company for the financial period ended 30 September 2020;

(i)  audited financial statements of BHP Development for the past 2 FYEs 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2019;

(iv) audited consolidated financial statements of Bumilex for the past 2 FYEs 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2019;

(v)  the Agreements and JVA,;

(vi)  valuation reports dated 21 October 2020 issued by CBRE|WTW in respect of the Bangsar
Land and the Development Rights;

(vii) letters of consent referred to in Section 2 of Appendix V of this Circular; and

(viii) relevant cause papers in respect of material litigation involving BHP Development referred
in Section 9 of Appendix I(A) of this Circular.
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SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Registration No. 196801000641 (8235-K))
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Extraordinary General Meeting of Sunsuria Berhad (“Sunsuria”
or “Company”) will be conducted in a fully virtual manner through live streaming from the broadcast
venue at Tricor Business Centre, Manuka 2 & 3 Meeting Room, Unit 29-01, Level 29, Tower A, Vertical
Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia on
Friday, 5 February 2021 at 10.00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof for the purpose of considering and if
thought fit to pass the following resolutions, with or without any modifications:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 1

PROPOSED SUBSCRIPTION BY SUNSURIA OF 4,488,520 NEW ORDINARY SHARES IN
BANGSAR HILL PARK DEVELOPMENT SDN BHD (“BHP DEVELOPMENT”) (“BHP
DEVELOPMENT SHARES”), REPRESENTING 51.0% EQUITY INTEREST OF THE ENLARGED
ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL OF BHP DEVELOPMENT, AT AN ISSUE PRICE OF RM1.88 PER BHP
DEVELOPMENT SHARE FOR A SUBSCRIPTION CONSIDERATION OF RM8,438,417.60 TO BE
SATISFIED IN CASH (“PROPOSED SUBSCRIPTION OF BHP DEVELOPMENT”)

“THAT subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 2, Ordinary Resolution 3 and Ordinary Resolution
4, and the approvals and consents of the relevant authorities and/or parties being obtained (where
required), approval be and is hereby given to the Company to:

(@)  subscribe for 4,488,520 new BHP Development Shares, representing 51.0% equity interest of
the enlarged issued share capital of BHP Development, at an issue price of RM1.88 per BHP
Development Share for a subscription consideration of RM8,438,417.60 to be satisfied in cash;
and

(b)  regulate the relationship between Sunsuria KL Sdn Bhd, Suez Capital Sdn Bhd, Dasar Temasek
Sdn Bhd (collectively, “BHP Development Existing Shareholders”) and the Company as
shareholders of BHP Development upon the completion of the Proposed Subscription of BHP
Development,

subject to and upon the terms and conditions set out in the conditional share subscription and
shareholder agreement dated 2 October 2020 entered into between the Company, BHP Development
Existing Shareholders and BHP Development for the Proposed Subscription of BHP Development
(“SSSA”).

AND THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) be and is hereby empowered and
authorised to do all acts, deeds and things and to execute, sign, deliver and cause to be delivered on
behalf of the Company all necessary documents as the Board may deem fit, necessary and expedient,
and to take all such necessary steps to give effect and complete the Proposed Subscription of BHP
Development with full powers to consent to and to adopt such conditions, variations, modifications,
and/or amendments in any manner as may be required or imposed by the relevant authorities in respect
of the Proposed Subscription of BHP Development or as the Board may deem necessary or expedient,
and to deal with all matters relating thereto and to take such steps and do all acts and things in any
manner as the Board may deem necessary or expedient to implement, finalise and give full effect and
complete the Proposed Subscription of BHP Development in the best interest of the Company.”



ORDINARY RESOLUTION 2

PROPOSED PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BY SUNSURIA TO BHP DEVELOPMENT
OF UP TO RM276.1 MILLION, OF WHICH AN AMOUNT OF UP TO RM102.1 MILLION IN CASH
WILL BE USED FOR THE WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENT OF BHP DEVELOPMENT WHICH
IS IN PROPORTION TO THE COMPANY’S PROPOSED 51.0% SHAREHOLDING IN BHP
DEVELOPMENT AND AN AMOUNT OF UP TO RM174.0 MILLION IN THE FORM OF CORPORATE
GUARANTEE, SUBJECT TO THE COMPLETION OF THE PROPOSED SUBSCRIPTION OF BHP
DEVELOPMENT (“PROPOSED PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO BHP
DEVELOPMENT”)

“THAT, subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 1, Ordinary Resolution 3 and Ordinary Resolution
4, and the approvals and consents of the relevant authorities and/or parties being obtained (where
required), approval be and is hereby given to the Company to provide financial assistance to BHP
Development, of up to RM276.1 million, of which an amount of up to RM102.1 million in cash shall be
used for the working capital requirement of BHP Development which is in proportion to the Company’s
proposed 51.0% shareholding in BHP Development and an amount of up to RM174.0 million in the form
of corporate guarantee for 51.0% of the financing facilities obtained by BHP Development, after the
completion of the Proposed Subscription of BHP Development.

AND THAT the Board be and is hereby empowered and authorised to do all acts, deeds and things
and to execute, sign, deliver and cause to be delivered on behalf of the Company all necessary
documents as the Board may deem fit, necessary and expedient, and to take all such necessary steps
to give effect to the Proposed Provision of Financial Assistance to BHP Development with full powers
to consent to and to adopt such conditions, variations, modifications, and/or amendments in any manner
as may be required or imposed by the relevant authorities in respect of the Proposed Provision of
Financial Assistance to BHP Development or as the Board may deem necessary or expedient, and to
deal with all matters relating thereto and to take such steps and do all acts and things in any manner
as the Board may deem necessary or expedient to implement, finalise and give full effect to Proposed
Provision of Financial Assistance to BHP Development in the best interest of the Company.”

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 3

PROPOSED ACQUISITION BY SUNSURIA OF 100,000 EXISTING ORDINARY SHARES IN
BUMILEX CONSTRUCTION SDN BHD (“BUMILEX”), REPRESENTING 100% EQUITY INTEREST
IN BUMILEX, FOR A PURCHASE CONSIDERATION OF RM2.00 TO BE SATISFIED IN CASH
(“PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF BUMILEX?”)

“THAT subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 1, Ordinary Resolution 2 and Ordinary Resolution
4, and the approvals and consents of the relevant authorities and/or parties being obtained (where
required), approval be and is hereby given to the Company to acquire 100% equity interest in Bumilex
for a purchase consideration of RM2.00 subject to and upon the terms and conditions set out in the
conditional shares sale and purchase agreement dated 2 October 2020 entered into between the
Company and Johari bin Said and Aizul Akma binti Awang for the Proposed Acquisition of Bumilex
(“SSPA”).

AND THAT the Board be and is hereby empowered and authorised to do all acts, deeds and things
and to execute, sign, deliver and cause to be delivered on behalf of the Company all necessary
documents as the Board may deem fit, necessary and expedient, and to take all such necessary steps
to give effect and complete the Proposed Acquisition of Bumilex with full powers to consent to and to
adopt such conditions, variations, modifications, and/or amendments in any manner as may be required
or imposed by the relevant authorities in respect of the Proposed Acquisition of Bumilex or as the Board
may deem necessary or expedient, and to deal with all matters relating thereto and to take such steps
and do all acts and things in any manner as the Board may deem necessary or expedient to implement,
finalise and give full effect and complete the Proposed Acquisition of Bumilex in the best interest of the
Company.”



ORDINARY RESOLUTION 4

PROPOSED PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BY SUNSURIA TO MONTFLEX SDN BHD
(“MONTFLEX”) OF UP TO RM33.3 MILLION, OF WHICH AN AMOUNT OF UP TO RM20.6 MILLION
IN CASH WILL BE USED FOR THE WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENT OF MONTFLEX WHICH
IS IN PROPORTION TO BUMILEX’S 51.0% SHAREHOLDING IN MONTFLEX AND AN AMOUNT OF
UP TO RM 12.7 MILLION IN THE FORM OF CORPORATE GUARANTEE, SUBJECT TO THE
COMPLETION OF THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF BUMILEX (“PROPOSED PROVISION OF
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO MONTFLEX?”)

“THAT, subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 1, Ordinary Resolution 2 and Ordinary Resolution
3, and the approvals and consents of the relevant authorities and/or parties being obtained (where
required), approval be and is hereby given to the Board to provide financial assistance to Montflex, a
51.0%-owned subsidiary of Bumilex, of up to RM33.3 million, of which an amount of up to RM20.6
million in cash shall be used for the working capital requirement of Montflex which is in proportion to
Bumilex’s 51.0% shareholding in Montflex and an amount of up to RM12.7 million in the form of
corporate guarantee for 51.0% of the financing facilities obtained by Montflex, after the completion of
the Proposed Acquisition of Bumilex.

AND THAT the Board be and is hereby empowered and authorised to do all acts, deeds and things
and to execute, sign, deliver and cause to be delivered on behalf of the Company all necessary
documents as the Board may deem fit, necessary and expedient, and to take all such necessary steps
to give effect to the Proposed Provision of Financial Assistance to Montflex with full powers to consent
to and to adopt such conditions, variations, modifications, and/or amendments in any manner as may
be required or imposed by the relevant authorities in respect of the Proposed Provision of Financial
Assistance Montflex or as the Board may deem necessary or expedient, and to deal with all matters
relating thereto and to take such steps and do all acts and things in any manner as the Board may deem
necessary or expedient to implement, finalise and give full effect to Proposed Provision of Financial
Assistance to Montflex in the best interest of the Company.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

LEE SWEE KHENG (MIA 12754) (SSM P.C. No.: 201908003159)
NGIAN YOKE FUNG (MAICSA 7049093) (SSM P.C. No.: 201908002393)
Company Secretaries

Petaling Jaya
Malaysia
21 January 2021

Notes:

1. The meeting will be conducted in a fully virtual manner through live streaming from the broadcast venue and online
remote voting via the Remote Participation and Voting facilities (“RPV Facilities”) provided by Tricor Investor & Issuing
House Services Sdn Bhd (“Tricor’) via its website at https://tiih.online. Please follow the procedures provided in the
Administrative Guide in order to register, participate and vote remotely via the RPV Facilities.

2. Shareholders will not be allowed to attend the meeting in person at the broadcast venue on the day of the meeting. The
broadcast venue is strictly for the purpose of complying with Section 327(2) of the Companies Act 2016 which requires
the Chairman to be present at the main venue of the meeting.

3. Member whose name appears on the Record of Depositors of the Company as at 26 January 2021 shall be eligible to
attend and vote remotely at the meeting via the RPV Facilities or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and vote on his/her stead.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing (in the common or usual form) under the hand of the appointor or of
his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer
or attorney duly authorised.

5. A proxy may, but need not be a member of the Company.



10.

11.

12.

13.

A member may appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the same meeting. Where a member of the
Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 (“SICDA”),
it may appoint at least one (1) proxy but not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each Securities Account it holds with
ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said Securities Account.

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for the
omnibus account, there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect
of each omnibus account it holds. Where an exempt authorised nominee appoints two (2) or more proxies, the
appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his holdings to be represented by each proxy.

An exempt authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined under the SICDA, which is exempted from
compliance with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of SICDA.

Where a member or the authorised nominee appoints two (2) proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings
to be represented by each proxy in the instrument appointing the proxies.

The instrument appointing a proxy or the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or notarially
certified copy of that power of attorney or authority, shall be deposited with the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor,
at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia not less than 48 hours before the time set for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

If no name is inserted in the space provided for the name of your proxy, the Chairman of the meeting will act as your
proxy.

A member who has appointed a proxy to attend and vote remotely at the meeting via the RPV Facilities must request
his/her proxy to register himself/herself for the RPV Facilities at Tricor's website at https.//tih.online not less than 48
hours before the time set for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof. Please follow the procedures provided in
the Administrative Guide.

The appointment of proxy may be made in hard copy or by electronic means as follows and must be received by the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time set for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

In hard copy form
The Form of Proxy must be deposited with the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor, at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower
A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur.

By electronic form
The Form of Proxy can also be electronically lodged with the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor, via its website at

https://tiih.online. Kindly refer to the Procedure for Electronic Submission of Proxy Form stated in the Administrative
Guide.
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ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDE FOR THE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Date : Friday, 5 February 2021
Time : 10.00 a.m.
Broadcast Venue : Tricor Business Centre, Manuka 2 & 3 Meeting Room

Unit 29-01, Level 29, Tower A

Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South,
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi

59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

MODE OF MEETING

In view of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic and as part of the safety measure, the
EGM of Sunsuria Berhad (“Sunsuria” or “Company”) will be conducted in a fully virtual manner through
live streaming from the Broadcast Venue.

Pursuant to the Securities Commission Malaysia’s Guidance Note on the Conduct of General Meetings
for Listed Issuer issued on 18 April 2020 (including any amendment that may be made from time to
time), there will be no physical venue for the EGM of the Company and the only venue involved is the
Broadcast Venue where only essential individuals are permitted to be physically present to organise
the fully virtual EGM of the Company. The Broadcast Venue is strictly for the purpose of complying with
Section 327(2) of the Companies Act, 2016 which requires the Chairman of the meeting to be present
at the main venue of the meeting.

Shareholders or proxies will not be allowed to attend the EGM of the Company in person at the
Broadcast Venue on the day of the EGM of the Company. However, Shareholders or proxies are
welcomed to participate in the EGM of the Company remotely by viewing a live webcast of the meeting,
ask questions and submit votes in real time using the Remote Participation and Voting facilities (“RPV
Facilities”) provided by the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services
Sdn Bhd (“Tricor”), via its website at https://tiih.online (“TIIH Online”).




PROCEDURES FOR THE RPV FACILITIES

Shareholders, proxies, authorised representatives or attorneys who wish to participate in the EGM of
the Company using the RPV Facilities are to follow the requirements and procedures summarised
below:

Procedure Action

Before the Day of the EGM of the Company

(a) Register as a | « Using your computer, please access TIIH Online.
user with TIIH | « Register as a user under the “e-Services”. Refer to the tutorial guide
Online posted on the homepage for assistance.

e Registration as a user will be approved within one working day and
you will be notified via email.

e If you are already a user with TIIH Online, you are not required to
register again. You will receive an email to notify you that the remote
participation is available for registration at TIIH Online.

(b) Submit your | » Registration is open from Thursday, 21 January 2021 up to the day

registration  for of the EGM of the Company on Friday, 5 February 2021.

the RPV Shareholders, proxies, authorised representatives or attorneys are

Facilities required to pre-register their attendance for the EGM of the Company
to ascertain their eligibility to participate in the EGM of the Company
using the RPV Facilities.

e Login with your user name and password and select the corporate
event: “(REGISTRATION) SUNSURIA BERHAD EGM".

e Read and agree to the “Terms & Conditions” and confirm the
“Declaration”.

e Select “Register for Remote Participation and Voting’.

e Review your registration and proceed to register.

e System will send an email to notify that your registration for remote
participation is received and will be verified.

e After verification of your registration against the Record of Depositors
of the Company as at 26 January 2021, the system will send you an
email to approve your registration for remote participation and the
procedures to use the RPV Facilities are detailed therein. In the event
your registration is not approved, you will also be notified via email.

Note: Please ensure to allow sufficient time required for the approval as
a new user of TIIH Online as well as the registration for the RPV Facilities
in order for you to login to TIIH Online and participate in the EGM of the

Company remotely.
On the day of the EGM of the Company
(c) Login to e Login with your username and password for remote participation at the
TIH Online EGM of the Company at any time from 9.30 a.m. i.e. 30 minutes before

the commencement of the EGM of the Company on Friday, 5
February 2021 at 10.00 a.m.

(d) Participate » Select the corporate event: “(LIVE STREAM MEETING) SUNSURIA
through live BERHAD EGM” to engage in the proceedings of the EGM of the
streaming Company remotely.

¢ If you have any question for the Chairman / Board of Directors of the
Company (“Board”), you may use the query box to transmit your
question. The Chairman / Board will endeavour to respond to the
relevant questions submitted by you during the EGM of the Company.
If there is time constraint, the responses will be emailed to you at the
earliest possible, after the meeting.




Procedure Action

(e)

Online remote e Voting session commences from 10.00 a.m. on Friday, 5 February

voting 2021 until a time when the Chairman announces the end of the voting
session of the EGM of the Company.

e Select the corporate event: “(REMOTE VOTING) SUNSURIA
BERHAD EGM’ or if you are on the live stream meeting page, you can
select “GO TO REMOTE VOTING PAGE” button below the query box.

e Read and agree to the “Terms & Conditions” and confirm the
“Declaration”.

e Select the Central Depository System (“CDS”) account that represents
your shareholdings.

¢ Indicate your votes for the resolutions that are tabled for voting.

e Confirm and submit your votes.

(f)

End of remote e Upon the announcement by the Chairman on the closure of the EGM
participation of the Company, the live streaming will end.

Notes to users of the RPV Facilities:

1.

Should your registration for the RPV Facilities be approved, we will make available to you the rights to join
the live streamed meeting and to vote remotely. Your login to TIIH Online on the day of the EGM of the
Company will indicate your presence at the virtual meeting.

The quality of your connection to the live broadcast is dependent on the bandwidth and stability of the
internet at your location and the device you use.

In the event you encounter any issues with logging-in, connection to the live streamed meeting or online
voting on the day of the EGM of the Company, kindly call Tricor’s helpline at 011-40805616/011-40803168
/011-40803169 / 011-40803170 or email to tiih.online@my.tricorglobal.com for assistance.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY(IES), AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE(S) OR ATTORNEY(S)

Shareholders who appoint proxy(ies), authorised representative(s) or attorney(s) to participate, speak
and vote at the EGM of the Company via the RPV Facilities must ensure that the duly executed proxy
forms are deposited in a hard copy form or by electronic means to Tricor not later than Wednesday, 3
February 2021 at 10.00 a.m.

The appointment of a proxy may be made in a hard copy form or by electronic means in the following
manner:

(i)

In hard copy form

In the case of an appointment made in hard copy form, the proxy form must be deposited with
the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor, at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business
Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia or
alternatively, the Customer Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground Floor, Vertical Podium, Avenue
3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

By electronic form
In the case of an appointment is made by electronic form, the proxy form can be electronically

lodged with the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor, via TIIH Online (applicable to individual
shareholders only). Kindly refer to the Procedure for Electronic Submission of Proxy Form below.

Please ensure all the particulars as required in the proxy form are completed, signed and dated
accordingly.



Any authority pursuant to which such an appointment is made by a power of attorney must be deposited
with the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor, at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business
Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia or alternatively,
the Customer Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground Floor, Vertical Podium, Avenue 3, Bangsar South,
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia not later than Wednesday, 3 February 2021 at
10.00 a.m. to participate in the EGM of the Company via the RPV Facilities. A copy of the power of
attorney may be accepted provided that it is certified notarially and/or in accordance with the applicable
legal requirements in the relevant jurisdiction in which it is executed.

For a corporate member who has appointed an authorised representative, please deposit the
ORIGINAL certificate of appointment with the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor, at Unit 32-01,
Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia or alternatively, the Customer Service Centre at Unit G-3, Ground Floor,
Vertical Podium, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia not
later than Wednesday, 3 February 2021 at 10.00 a.m. to participate in the EGM of the Company via
the RPV Facilities. The certificate of appointment should be executed in the following manner:

(i) If the corporate member has a common seal, the certificate of appointment should be executed
under seal in accordance with the constitution of the corporate member.

(i)  If the corporate member does not have a common seal, the certificate of appointment should be
affixed with the rubber stamp of the corporate member (if any) and executed by:

(a) atleast two (2) authorised officers, of whom one shall be a director; or
(b)  any director and/or authorised officers in accordance with the laws of the country under
which the corporate member is incorporated.
PROCEDURE FOR ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION OF PROXY FORM (APPLICABLE TO INDIVIDUAL
SHAREHOLDERS ONLY)

The procedures to submit your proxy form electronically via TIIH Online are summarised below:

Procedure Action

(a) Register as a e Using your computer, please access TIIH Online.
user with TIIH e Register as a user under the “e-Services”. Refer to the tutorial guide
Online posted on the homepage for assistance.

e If you are already a user with TIIH Online, you are not required to
register again.

(b) Proceed with o After the release of the notice of EGM of the Company, login with your
submission of username and password.
proxy form e Select the corporate event: SUNSURIA BERHAD EGM “Submission

of Proxy Form”.

e Read and agree to the “Terms & Conditions” and confirm the
“Declaration”.

¢ Insert your CDS account number and indicate the number of shares
for your proxy(ies) to vote on your behalf.

e Appoint your proxy(ies) and insert the required details of your
proxy(ies) or appoint the Chairman as your proxy.

¢ Indicate your voting instructions — “FOR” or “AGAINST”, otherwise
your proxy(ies) will decide your vote.

e Review and confirm your proxy(ies) appointment.

e Print proxy form for your record.




POLL VOTING

The voting at the EGM of the Company will be conducted by poll in accordance with Paragraph 8.29A
of Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The Company has
appointed Tricor as poll administrator to conduct the poll by way of electronic voting (e-voting).
Shareholders or proxy(ies) or authorised representative(s) or attorney(s) can proceed to vote on the
resolutions at any time from the commencement of the EGM of the Company at 10.00 a.m. on Friday,
5 February 2021 but before the end of the voting session which will be announced by the Chairman.
Kindly refer to item (e) of the Procedures for the RPV Facilities above for guidance on how to vote
remotely from TIIH Online.

Upon completion of the voting session for the EGM of the Company, the independent scrutineers will
verify the poll results upon closing of the poll session by the Chairman followed by the Chairman’s
declaration on whether the resolutions are duly passed.

PRE-MEETING SUBMISSION OF QUESTION TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may submit questions for the Board in advance of the EGM of the Company via TIIH
Online by selecting “e-Services” to login, pose questions and submit electronically not later than
Wednesday, 3 February 2021 at 10.00 a.m. The Board will endeavour to answer the relevant questions
received at the EGM of the Company.

DOOR GIFT/FOOD VOUCHER

There will be no distribution of door gifts or food vouchers for participating the EGM of the Company.

NO RECORDING OR PHOTOGRAPHY

Unauthorised recording and photography are strictly prohibited for the EGM of the Company.

ENQUIRY

If you have any enquiries on the above, please contact the following persons during office hours on
Mondays to Fridays from 9.00 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. (except on public holidays):

Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd

General Line : +603-2783 9299

Fax Number . +603-2783 9222

Email . is.enquiry@my.tricorglobal.com
Contact Person : Ms. Lim Lay Kiow

Tel: +603-2783 9232 /Email: Lay.Kiow.Lim@my.tricorglobal.com

Ms. Siti Zalina Osmin
Tel: +603-2783 9247 /Email: Siti.Zalina@my.tricorglobal.com

Mr. Lim Jia Jin
Tel: +603-2783 9246 /Email: Jia.Jin.Lim@my.tricorglobal.com




Q,
e

& . FORMOFPROXY
SUNSURIA ease refer to the notes below before completing this form

Building Today Creating Tomorrow

Number of shares held
SUNSURIA BERHAD DS Account No.
(Registration No. 196801000641 (8235-K)) Telephone No.
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Proportion of holdings to be Proxy 1 Proxy 2
represented by each proxy % %
LWV et e e a e e e e e e e e e ea e e e atbeaaaeaanae NRIC No/ Registration NO. ..........cooovviiiiiieeiiiiieecs

(FULL ADDRESS)

being a member of Sunsuria Berhad hereby appoints.............oooiiiiiiiiii et e e

.......................................................................................................................... [N | (O o T
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)
Lo ) SR
(FULL ADDRESS)
or failing NIM/NEE, ...oooe e e e NRIC NO..... e
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)
Lo ) PR

(FULL ADDRESS)

or failing him/her, the CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as *my/our proxy to attend and vote for *me/us on my/our behalf at the
Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company to be conducted in a fully virtual manner through live streaming from the
broadcast venue at Tricor Business Centre, Manuka 2 & 3 Meeting Room, Unit 29-01, Level 29, Tower A, Vertical Business
Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia on Friday, 5 February 2021 at 10.00
a.m. or any adjournment thereof.

Ordinary Resolutions: For Against

Proposed Subscription of Bangsar Hill Park Development Sdn Bhd (‘BHP Development”)

Proposed Provision of Financial Assistance to BHP Development

Proposed Acquisition of Bumilex Construction Sdn Bhd

i R I e

Proposed Provision of Financial Assistance to Montflex Sdn Bhd

(Please indicate with an “X” or “\” in the appropriate boxes above on how you wish your vote to be casted. If you do not do so,
the proxy shall vote or abstain from voting at his/their discretion)

Dated this ................ day of....oeiiieee 20271 e
Signature of Shareholder/ Common Seal of Member

Notes:

1. The meeting will be conducted in a fully virtual manner through live streaming from the broadcast venue and online remote voting via the

Remote Participation and Voting facilities (“RPV Facilities”) provided by Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd (“Tricor’) via its
website at https://ftiih.online. Please follow the procedures provided in the Administrative Guide in order to register, participate and vote
remotely via the RPV Facilities.

Shareholders will not be allowed to attend the meeting in person at the broadcast venue on the day of the meeting. The broadcast venue is
strictly for the purpose of complying with Section 327(2) of the Companies Act 2016 which requires the Chairman to be present at the main
venue of the meeting.

Member whose name appears on the Record of Depositors of the Company as at 26 January 2021 shall be eligible to attend and vote
remotely at the meeting via the RPV Facilities or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and vote on his/her stead.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing (in the common or usual form) under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly
authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

A proxy may, but need not be a member of the Company.

A member may appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the same meeting. Where a member of the Company is an
authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 (“SICDA”), it may appoint at least one (1)
proxy but not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each Securities Account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the
credit of the said Securities Account.

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for the omnibus account,
there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
Where an exempt authorised nominee appoints two (2) or more proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions
of his holdings to be represented by each proxy.

An exempt authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined under the SICDA, which is exempted from compliance with the
provisions of subsection 25A(1) of SICDA.



9. Where a member or the authorised nominee appoints two (2) proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented
by each proxy in the instrument appointing the proxies.

10. The instrument appointing a proxy or the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or notarially certified copy of
that power of attorney or authority, shall be deposited with the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor, at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A,
Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia not less than 48 hours before the
time set for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

11. If no name is inserted in the space provided for the name of your proxy, the Chairman of the meeting will act as your proxy.

12. A member who has appointed a proxy to attend and vote remotely at the meeting via the RPV Facilities must request his/her proxy to register
himself/herself for the RPV Facilities at Tricor’s website at https:/tiih.online not less than 48 hours before the time set for holding the meeting
or any adjournment thereof. Please follow the procedures provided in the Administrative Guide.

13. The appointment of proxy may be made in hard copy or by electronic means as follows and must be received by the Company not less than
48 hours before the time set for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

In hard copy form
The Form of Proxy must be deposited with the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor, at Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A, Vertical Business

Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur.

By electronic form
The Form of Proxy can also be electronically lodged with the Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor, via its website at https://tiih.online.

Kindly refer to the Procedure for Electronic Submission of Proxy Form stated in the Administrative Guide.
*  Strike out whichever is not valid.
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AFFIX
STAMP

The Share Registrar
SUNSURIA BERHAD
(Registration No. 196801000641 (8235-K))
c/o Tricor Investor & Issuing House Services Sdn Bhd
Unit 32-01, Level 32, Tower A
Vertical Business Suite,
Avenue 3, Bangsar South
No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi 59200
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
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